

**BYLAWS**  
**OF**  
**HAMILTON FIELD OF MARIN ASSOCIATION**  
**(A California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation)**

**BYLAWS**  
**OF**  
**HAMILTON FIELD OF MARIN ASSOCIATION**  
**(A California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation)**

**TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<u>ARTICLE 1 - Definitions</u> .....	1
<u>ARTICLE 2 - Name</u> .....	1
<u>ARTICLE 3 - Principal Office</u> .....	1
<u>ARTICLE 4 - Membership and Voting Rights</u> .....	1
<u>ARTICLE 5 - Meetings of Members</u> .....	1
5.1 Place of Meetings .....	1
5.2 Annual Meetings .....	2
5.3 Special Meetings .....	2
5.4 Notice of Meetings .....	2
5.5 Special Notice Requirements .....	2
5.6 Waiver of Notice or Consent .....	3
5.7 Proof of Membership and Record Date .....	3
5.8 Quorum .....	3
5.9 Proxies .....	4
5.10 Order of Business .....	5
5.11 Parliamentary Procedure .....	5
5.12 Action by Unanimous Written Consent .....	5
5.13 Action by Written Ballot .....	5
<u>ARTICLE 6 - Election and Term of Office of Members of the Board of Directors</u> .....	6
6.1 Number .....	6
6.2 Section of Directors .....	6
6.3 Vacancies .....	7
6.4 Compensation .....	7
<u>ARTICLE 7 - Meetings of Directors</u> .....	7
7.1 Place of Meetings .....	7
7.2 Regular Meetings .....	8
7.3 Special Meetings .....	8
7.4 Emergency Meetings .....	8
7.5 Quorum Requirements .....	8
7.6 Adjourned Meetings .....	8
7.7 Action Taken Without a Meeting .....	8
7.8 Waiver of Notice .....	8

7.9	Telephone Meetings .....	9
<u>ARTICLE 8 - Powers and Duties of the Board</u> .....		9
8.1	Powers .....	9
8.2	Duties .....	9
8.3	Standard of Care .....	9
8.4	Committees of the Board .....	9
8.5	Due Process Requirements .....	9
<u>ARTICLE 9 - Officers and Their Duties</u> .....		10
9.1	Officers of the Association .....	10
9.2	Section of Officers .....	10
9.3	Other Officers .....	10
9.4	Removal or Resignation of Officers .....	10
9.5	Vacancies .....	10
9.6	Duties .....	10
9.7	Joint Signatures .....	11
9.8	Compensation .....	11
<u>ARTICLE 10 - Indemnification and Insurance</u> .....		11
10.1	Indemnification .....	11
10.2	Insurance .....	12
<u>ARTICLE 11 - Amendments</u> .....		12
11.1	Amending the Bylaws .....	12
11.2	Amending the Articles .....	12
11.3	Amendment Restrictions .....	12
<u>ARTICLE 12 - General Provisions</u> .....		12
12.1	Conflict with Declaration .....	12
12.2	Fiscal Year .....	12
12.3	Records .....	12
12.4	Inspection Rights .....	13
<u>CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY</u> .....		14

**BYLAWS**  
**OF**  
**HAMILTON FIELD OF MARIN ASSOCIATION**  
**(A California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation)**

ARTICLE 1 - Definitions

The definitions contained in Article 1 of the Hamilton Declaration of Restrictions (CC&Rs) that was recorded in Marin County, California, in connection with the residential development for which this Association was established are incorporated by reference and shall apply to those same terms as they may appear in these Bylaws unless the context indicates otherwise.

ARTICLE 2 - Name

The name of the Association is the Hamilton Field of Marin Association.

ARTICLE 3 - Principal Office

The principal office of the Association is located at such place as may be designated by the Board from time to time.

ARTICLE 4 - Membership and Voting Rights

The membership and voting rights provisions contained in Sections 3.3, 3.4 and 3.5 of the Declaration are incorporated by reference.

ARTICLE 5 - Meetings of Members

5.1 Place of Meetings. All meetings of the Members, annual and special, shall be held at a place within the Development as designated by the Board, provided that if there is not an available and appropriate place within the Development, the Board shall designate a meeting place as close as possible to the Development but in no event outside the County unless unusual conditions exist. In the absence of any designation, the meetings of Members shall be held at the principal office of the Association.

5.2 Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of Members of the Association shall be held no later than six months after the closing and recording of the sale of the first Residential Lot under the authority of a final subdivision public report issued by the California Department of Real Estate. Thereafter, annual meetings shall be set by the Board to occur at such date and time as may be fixed by the Board.

5.3 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be called for any lawful purpose by the Board, the president, or by written request signed by Members representing at least 5% of the total voting power of the Association. A special meeting called by any Person (other than the Board) entitled to call a meeting shall be made by submitting a written request specifying the general nature of the business to be transacted to the president, any vice president, or secretary of the Association. The officer receiving the request shall promptly cause notice to be given to the Members in the manner required by Section 5.4 that a meeting will be held at a date, time and place fixed by the Board, which meeting shall be held not less than 35 days nor more than 90 days after receipt of the request. If the notice is not given within 20 days after the receipt of the request, the Person or Persons requesting the meeting may give the notice.

5.4 Notice of Meetings. Notice of all Members' meetings, annual or special, shall be given not less than ten or more than 90 days before the date of the meeting to each Member and to any Mortgagee who has requested in writing to receive such notice. Any Mortgagee, or its designated representative, shall be entitled to attend any such meeting but shall not be entitled to vote at the meeting. The notice shall be given personally or by first-class, registered or certified mail addressed to the Member or Mortgagee at the address of such Member or Mortgagee appearing on the books of the Association or be given by the Member or Mortgagee to the Association for purpose of notice. If no address appears or is given for any Member, notice may be given at the Association's principal office or by publication at least once in a newspaper of general circulation. The notice shall state the place, date and time of the meeting and shall specify those matters the Board intends to present for action by the Members, provided that except as otherwise provided by law, any proper matter may be presented at the meeting for action. If directors are to be elected at the meeting, the notice shall include the names of all those who are nominees at the time notice is given. In the case of a special meeting, the notice shall state the general nature of the business to be transacted and no other business may be transacted. In the case of the annual meeting, the notice shall state those matters that the Board intends, at the time the notice is given, to present to the Members for action; but any matter may be presented at the meeting for action subject to the special notice requirements described in Section 5.5 of these Bylaws. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Members may vote only on those matters for which notice was given in any meeting where the quorum requirement as described in Section 5.8 of these Bylaws is less than one-third of the voting power of the Association and Members holding less than one-third actually attend.

5.5 Special Notice Requirements. Approval by the Members of any of the following proposals, other than by unanimous approval of those Members entitled to vote, shall not be valid unless the general nature of the proposal was stated in the notice or in any written waiver of the notice:

- (i) removing a director without cause;
- (ii) filling vacancies on the Board;
- (iii) amending the Articles;
- (iv) approving a contract or transaction between the Association and one or more directors, or between the Association and any entity in which a director has a material financial interest;
- (v) electing to wind up and dissolve the Association; or

(vi) approving a plan of distribution of assets, other than money, not in accordance with the liquidation rights of any class of Members (applicable only if the Association is in the process of winding up and there is more than one class of membership outstanding at the time).

5.6 Waiver of Notice or Consent. The transactions of any meeting of Members, however called or noticed and wherever held, shall be as valid as though taken at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if: (i) a quorum is present either in person or by proxy; and (ii) either before or after the meeting each Member entitled to vote, not present in person or by proxy, signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to the holding of the meeting, or an approval of the minutes of the meeting. The waiver of notice, consent or approval need not specify either the business to be transacted or the purpose of any meeting of Members, except that if action is taken or proposed to be taken for approval of any of those matters specified in Section 5.5 of these Bylaws, the waiver of notice, consent or approval shall state the general nature of the proposal. All such waivers, consents or approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Attendance of a Member at a meeting shall also constitute a waiver of notice of the meeting unless the Member objects at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Also, attendance at a meeting is not a waiver of any right to object to the consideration of matters required to be included in a notice of the meeting but not so included if that objection is expressly made at the meeting.

5.7 Proof of Membership and Record Date. No person shall exercise the rights of membership in the Association until satisfactory proof of membership has been furnished the Association. Such proof may consist of either a duly-executed and acknowledged grant deed or title insurance policy showing that the person has an ownership interest in a Lot in the Development that would entitle the person to membership in the Association as provided in Section 2.3 of the Declaration. Such deed or policy shall be deemed conclusive proof of the person's membership in the absence of a conflicting claim based on a later deed or policy. For purposes of determining the members entitled to notice of any meeting, to vote, or to exercise any of the rights in respect of any lawful action, the Board may fix in advance a record date as follows:

(i) the record date for notices shall be not more than 90 nor less than ten days before the date of the meeting;

(ii) the record date for voting shall not be more than 60 days before the date of the meeting or before the date on which the first written ballot is mailed or solicited; and

(iii) the record date for any other actions shall not be more than 60 days before the date of such action. If no record date is fixed by the Board, the record date shall be determined in accordance with the Corporations Code section 7611. A person holding a membership as of the close of business on the record date shall be a Member of record.

5.8 Quorum. The presence at any meeting in person or by proxy of Members entitled to cast at least 33 1/3% of the total votes of all Members shall constitute a quorum. Any Members meetings, whether or not a quorum is present, may be adjourned from time to time for any reason by a vote of the Members representing a majority of the voting power of the Members present at the meeting, either in person or by proxy, to another time not less than five days nor more than 30 days from the original meeting. If the time and place of the adjourned meeting is announced prior to the adjournment of the original meeting, no notice of the adjourned meeting is required, provided that if a new date is fixed for the adjourned meeting after the adjournment of the original meeting, notice of the date, time and place of the adjourned meeting shall be given to Members in the manner described in **Section 5.4** of these Bylaws. Any business that might have been transacted at the original meeting may be transacted at the adjourned meeting. In the absence of a quorum, no business may be transacted at the meeting other than

to adjourn the meeting to another time. If a meeting is adjourned because a quorum is not present, the quorum requirement for the rescheduled meeting shall be reduced to 25% of the total voting power of all Members, provided that if the adjourned meeting is attended, in person or proxy, by less than one-third of the voting power of the Association, the only matter that may be voted upon at the adjourned meeting are matters for which notice of the general nature was given pursuant to the notice requirements of Section 5.4.

The Members present at a duly-called or -held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Members to leave less than a quorum if any action taken (other than adjournment) is approved by at least a majority of the Members required to constitute a quorum.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, a quorum for purposes of approving assessment increases as required under Section 6.7 of the Declaration shall satisfy the quorum requirements described in Section 6.7 of the Declaration and a quorum for electing directors shall be in accordance with the procedures described in Section 6.2.

5.9 Proxies. Each Member entitled to vote shall have the right to do so either in person or by one or more agents authorized by written proxy, signed by the person and filed with the secretary of the Association. A proxy shall be considered signed if the Member's name is placed on the proxy (whether by manual signature, typewriting, telegraphic transmission or otherwise) by a Member or the Member's attorney-in-fact. Any proxy or written ballot that is distributed to ten or more Members shall satisfy the requirements of Corporations Code section 7514(a) if the Association has 100 or more Members. .

Any validly-executed proxy shall continue in full force and effect until: (i) written notice is received by the Association of the death or incapacity of the Member executing the proxy; or (ii) the Member executing the proxy revokes it before the vote is cast under that proxy by (a) delivering a written revocation to the Association; (b) executing a subsequent proxy that is presented to the meeting; or (c) attending and voting in person at any meeting. Unless the proxy indicates otherwise, it shall not be valid after 11 months from the date of execution; and in no event shall any proxy be valid after three years from the date of execution. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, all proxies shall be revocable and shall automatically terminate when the Member's membership in the Association terminates as provided in Section 2.3 of the Declaration. A suspension of any Member's voting rights for the Association shall automatically suspend any proxy executed by that Member.

Any form of proxy distributed by any person to the membership of the Association shall afford the opportunity to specify a choice between approval and disapproval of each matter or group of matters to be acted upon. The proxy shall provide that, where the Member specifies a choice, the vote shall be cast in accordance with that choice. The proxy also shall identify the person or persons authorized to exercise the proxy and the length of time it will be valid.

No proxy shall be valid with respect to a vote on the following proposals to be approved by the Members unless the general nature of the matter was set forth in the proxy:

- (i) removing a director without cause;
- (ii) filling vacancies on the Board;
- (iii) amending the Articles;
- (iv) the sale, lease, conveyance, exchange, transfer or other disposal of all or substantially all of the Association's assets, or the approval of the principal terms of a merger or the amendment to the principal terms of the merger;

(v) approving a contract or transaction between the Association and one or more directors, or between the Association and any entity in which a director has a material financial interest;

(vi) electing to wind up and dissolve the Association; or

(vii) approving a plan of distribution of assets, other than money, not in accordance with the liquidation rights of any class of Members (applicable only if the Association is in the process of winding up and there is more than one class of membership outstanding at the time).

5.10 Order of Business. The order of business of all meetings of the Members shall be as follows:

- (i) roll call;
- (ii) (ii) proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;
- (iii) reading of minutes of preceding meeting;
- (iv) reports of Board and officers;
- (v) election of directors if any are to be elected;
- (vi) unfinished business; and
- (vii) new business.

5.11 Parliamentary Procedure. All questions of parliamentary procedure shall be decided in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order or such other parliamentary procedures as the Board may adopt.

5.12 Action by Unanimous Written Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Members may be taken without a meeting if all of the Members consent in writing to the action. The written consent shall have the same force and effect as the unanimous vote of the Members. The written consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Members.

5.13 Action by Written Ballot. Any action that may be taken at any meeting of the Members may be taken by written ballot if the following requirements are satisfied.

(i) the Association distributes a written ballot to each Member entitled to vote on the matter. The ballot shall be given personally or by first-class mail addressed to the Member at the address of such Member appearing on the books of the Association or given by the Member to the Association for purpose of notice. The ballots shall provide a reasonable time within which to be returned. If ballots are distributed to ten or more Members and the Association has 100 or more Members, the requirements of Corporations Code section 7514 shall be satisfied.

(ii) Each ballot shall set forth:

(a) the proposed action;

(b) an opportunity to specify approval or disapproval of any proposal;

(c) confirmation that if the Member specifies a choice, the vote shall be cast in accordance with that Member's choice;



(d) the time by which the ballot must be received by the Association in order to be counted;

(e) the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirement; and

(f) The percentage of approvals necessary to approve the proposed action.

(iii) The proposed action shall be considered approved by written ballot if: (a) within the time period specified, the number of votes cast by ballot equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action; and (b) the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required for approval at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot

(iv) A written ballot may not be revoked.

#### ARTICLE 6 - Election and Term of Office of Members of the Board of Directors

6.1 Number. As required by Section 3.2 of the Declaration, the Board initially shall consist of three directors elected by the incorporator of the Association. At the first annual meeting of the Association as described in Section 5.2 of these Bylaws, the number of directors shall be increased to seven. The Owners of Residential Lots in each of the four Residential Neighborhoods shall each elect one director, and the Owners of the Commercial Lots voting collectively shall elect three directors. If additional Residential Neighborhoods are annexed into the Development, the number of directors shall be increased by one for each additional Residential Neighborhood; and the Owners of Lots in the additional Residential Neighborhood shall be entitled to elect the additional director for that Residential Neighborhood.

Pending the first election held after the first sale of a Residential Lot in a Residential Neighborhood under the authority of a final subdivision public report issued by the California Department of Real Estate, the Declarant, or the Residential Developer if designated by the Declarant, shall be entitled to elect the director for that Residential Neighborhood.

A director representing a Residential Neighborhood shall be an Owner of a Lot in that Residential Neighborhood or a designated representative of any Owner of a Lot in the Residential Neighborhood.

6.2 Election of Directors. The three initial directors shall be elected by the incorporator of the Association as soon as is practical after the incorporation of the Association and shall hold office until the first annual meeting of the Members as specified in Section 5.2 of these Bylaws. At the first annual meeting, the Members shall elect directors to fill all positions on the Board. The election shall be by written ballot distributed to the Members at least 45 days prior to each annual meeting at which new directors are to take office. Cumulative voting shall not be allowed. The Board shall adopt procedures that provide for a reasonable opportunity for Members to nominate candidates prior to the submission of the ballots to the Members. The candidate receiving the highest number of votes received by the Lot Owners in a Residential Neighborhood shall be elected as the director from that Residential Neighborhood, and the three candidates receiving the highest number of votes from the Commercial Lot Owners shall be elected as directors. For purposes of electing a director from a Residential Neighborhood, the quorum requirements described in Section 5.8 shall apply to the total number of votes in that Residential Neighborhood; and for purposes of electing the three Commercial Lot directors, the quorum requirements shall apply to the total number of Commercial Lot votes. Unless the office is vacated sooner as provided in Section 6.3, each director shall hold office until his or her term expires and a successor has been elected and qualified. The term shall be for three years.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if a Residential Neighborhood has established a separate homeowners association, the Members of which are the Owners of all Residential Lots in the Residential Neighborhood, the president of this homeowners association automatically shall be that Residential Neighborhood's director on the Board; and the election procedures described herein shall not be applicable. The provisions regarding the election or appointment of the president shall be in accordance with the bylaws of the homeowners association.

Any director may resign at anytime. The resignation shall be effective upon giving written notice to the president, secretary or Board unless the notice specifies a later effective date, resignation.

6.3 Vacancies. A vacancy or vacancies on the Board shall exist on the occurrence of any of the following:

(i) the death of any director;

(ii) the effective date of any director's resignation;

(iii) the removal of a director by vote of the Members, provided that removal of any director elected by the Lot Owners of a Residential Neighborhood may be removed only by a vote of Members holding a majority of the voting power from that Residential Neighborhood, and any director elected by the Commercial Lot Owners may be removed only by Members holding a majority of the voting power of the Commercial Lot Owners.

(iv) the Declaration by resolution of the Board of a vacancy in the office of a director who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court or convicted of a felony;

(v) the increase in the authorized number of directors; or

(vi) the failure of the Members, at any meeting of the Members at which any director or directors are to be elected, to elect the number of directors required to be elected at that meeting.

Any vacancy on the Board may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office whether or not less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, except for a vacancy created by a removal of a director by a vote of the Members, which vacancy shall be filled by the Members who were entitled to vote on the removal of the director. In addition, the Members may fill any vacancy not filled by the directors provided the Members were entitled to vote for the director whose position is now vacant. Any director elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office until the expiration of the term of his or her predecessor and until a successor has been elected and qualified.

6.4 Compensation. A director shall not receive any compensation for any services rendered to the Association as a director, provided the directors may be reimbursed for actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance in his or her duty, provided such expenses were approved in advance by the Board.

## ARTICLE 7 - Meetings of Directors

7.1 Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Board shall be held at any place within the Development designated by the Board or described in the notice of meeting. Meetings shall be held within the Development unless in the Board's judgment a larger meeting room is required than is available within the

Development, in which case the Board shall select a meeting place as close as possible to the Development.

7.2 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held monthly at such time or place within the Development as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board, provided that if the business to be transacted by the Board does not require monthly meetings, regular meetings may be held less frequently but no less than one regular meeting every six months. If the regular meeting falls on a holiday, the meetings shall be held at the same time on the next business day. Notice of the time and place of any regular meetings shall be posted at a prominent place or places within the Common Area and shall be given to each director not less than four days prior to the meeting.

7.3 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by written notice signed by the president of the Association, or by any two directors other than the president. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered, shall be posted in a manner prescribed for notice of regular meetings, and shall be sent to all directors not less than 96 hours prior to the scheduled time of the meeting.

7.4 Emergency Meetings. An emergency meeting of the Board may be called by the President of the Association or by any two members of the Board, other than the President, if there are circumstances that could not have been reasonably foreseen which require immediate attention and possible action by the Board.

7.5 Quorum Requirements. A majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum was present shall be regarded as an act of the Board, subject to the requirements of Corporations Code section 7211 (a) (8), including, without limitation, the requirements relating to: (i) approval of contracts or transactions between the Association and one or more directors, or between the Association and any entity in which a director has a material financial interest; (ii) creation of and appointments to committees of the Board; and (iii) indemnification of directors. A meeting at which a quorum was initially present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors if any action taken or decision made is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting.

7.6 Adjourned Meetings. A majority of the directors present, whether or not a quorum was present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. Notice of the time and place of the holding of an adjourned meeting need not be given unless the original meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours. If the original meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, notice of any adjournment to another time or place shall be given before the time of the adjourned meeting to the directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment.

7.7 Action Taken Without a Meeting. To the extent authorized by laws, any action that the Board is required or permitted to take may be taken without a meeting if all of the members of the Board consent in writing to that action. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as any other validly-approved action of the Board. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board.

7.8 Waiver of Notice. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who, either before or after the meeting, signs a waiver of notice, a written consent to the holding of the meeting, or an approval of the minutes of the meeting. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the Association's records or made a part of the minutes of the meetings. Notice of the meeting need not be given to any director who attends the meeting and does not protest, before or at the commencement of the meeting, the lack of notice to that director.

7.9 Telephone Meetings. To the extent authorized by laws, any meeting, regular or special, may be held by conference telephone or similar telephone communication equipment so long as all directors participating in the meeting can hear one another. All such directors participating in such a meeting shall be considered to be present in person at such meeting. An explanation of the action taken shall be posted in a prominent place within the Common Area within three days after the meeting.

## ARTICLE 8 - Powers and Duties of the Board

8.1 Powers. The Board shall have all the powers conferred on the Association as set forth in the Declaration and these Bylaws except those powers expressly reserved to the Members and subject to the requirements to obtain approval of the Members before certain actions may be taken, in addition, the Board shall appoint and remove at its pleasure all officers, agents and employees of the Association and shall prescribe powers and duties for them that are consistent with the Declaration, the Articles, these Bylaws and any applicable laws.

8.2 Duties. The Board shall be responsible for the performance of the duties of the Association as set forth in the Declaration and shall supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Association for the proper performance of their duties.

8.3 Standard of Care. Each director shall perform his or her duties as a director, including the duties as a member of any committee of the Board on which a director serves in good faith, in a manner such director believes to be in the best interests of the Association and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances.

8.4 Committees of the Board. The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors then in office, provided a quorum is present, may create one or more committees, each consisting of at least one director, provided that members of any Neighborhood Architectural Committee need not be directors. No committee may: (i) take any final action in any matter which under the Declaration or the California Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law also requires approval of the Members or approval of a majority of the Members; (ii) fill vacancies on the Board or on any committee which has the authority of the Board; (iii) amend or repeal these Bylaws or adopt new bylaws; (iv) amend or repeal any resolution of the Board which by express terms is not so amendable or repealable; (v) appoint any other committees of the Board or the Members of those committees; or (vi) expend corporate funds to support a nominee for director after there are more nominees than can be elected.

The Board may adopt Rules for the government of any committee not inconsistent with the provisions of these Bylaws; or in the absence of Rules adopted by the Board, the committee may adopt such rules.

8.5 Due Process Requirements. Before the Board imposes any monetary penalties (other than late fees on delinquent assessments) or suspension of membership rights against any Member for failure to comply with the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Association Rules for reason other than a failure to pay assessments, the Board must act in good faith and satisfy each of the following requirements:

(i) the Member must be given 15 days' prior notice of the discipline to be imposed and the reasons for the imposition of the discipline. Notice may be given by any method reasonably calculated to give actual notice. If the notice is given by mail, it must be sent by first-class or registered mail to the last address of the Member as shown on the Association's records; and

(ii) the effective date of the imposition of the discipline shall not occur until at least five days after the Member has been given an opportunity to be heard, orally or in writing, by the Board. The Member shall have the opportunity to present witnesses on the Member's behalf and to cross-examine any witnesses who may testify against the Member and may be represented by legal counsel.

## ARTICLE 9 - Officers and Their Duties

9.1 Officers of the Association. The officers of the Association shall be a president, a secretary and a chief financial officer. The Association may also have, at the discretion of the Board, one or more vice presidents, one or more assistant secretaries, one or more assistant chief financial officers, and such other officers as may be appointed in the course of the provisions of Section 9.3 of these Bylaws. Any number of offices may be held by the same person.

9.2 Election of Officers. The officers, except those appointed under Section 9.3 of these Bylaws, shall be chosen annually by the Board and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. The Board shall appoint one of its directors as president and one as a chief financial officer; the other officers need not be directors.

9.3 Other Officers. The Board may appoint and may authorize the president or another officer to appoint any other officers that the Association may require. Each officer so appointed shall have the title, hold office for the period, and have the authority to perform the duties specified in these Bylaws as determined from time to time by the Board.

9.4 Removal or Resignation of Officers. Any officer may be removed with or without cause by the Board and also, if the officer is not chosen by the Board, by any officer on whom the Board may confer that power of removal. Any officer may resign at anytime by giving written notice to the Association. Any such resignation shall take effect as of the date the notice is received or at any later date specified in the notice; and, unless otherwise specified in the notice, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

9.5 Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of the death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause shall be filled in the manner provided in these Bylaws for regular appointments to the office, provided, however, that a vacancy need not be filled on an annual basis.

9.6 Duties. The duties of the officers shall be as follows:

(i) President. The president shall be the general manager and chief executive officer of the Association and generally supervise, direct and control the Association's activities, affairs and officers. The president shall preside at all meetings of Members and at all meetings of the Board. The president shall have such other powers and duties as prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

(ii) Vice Presidents. In the absence or disability of the president, the vice presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the Board, or, if not ranked, a vice president designated by the Board shall perform all of the duties of the president. When so acting, a vice president shall have all of the powers of and be subject to all of the restrictions on the president. The vice president shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

(iii) Secretary. The secretary shall keep or cause to be kept at the Association's principal office the following:

(a) a book of minutes of all meetings, proceedings and actions of the Board, committees of the Board and of meetings of Members. The minutes of meetings shall include the time and place of holding, whether annual, regular or special, and, if special, how authorized, the notice given, the names of those present at Board and committee meetings, and the number of Members present or represented at Members meetings;

(b) a copy of the Declaration, Articles and Bylaws as amended to date; and

(c) a record of the Members showing the names of all Members, their addresses, telephone numbers, and the class of memberships held by each.

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the secretary shall give or cause to be given the notices required by these Bylaws for meetings of members of the Board and of committees of the Board. The secretary shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

(iv) Chief Financial Officer. The chief financial officer shall keep and maintain or cause to be kept and maintained adequate and correct books and accounts of the properties and transactions of the Association and shall send or cause to be sent to the Members and directors such financial statements and reports as are required by law, the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Board. The books of account shall be open to the inspection by any director at all reasonable times.

The chief financial officer shall deposit or cause to be deposited all money and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the Association with such depositories as may be designated by the Board, shall disburse the funds of the Association as may be ordered by the Board, shall render to the president and the Board when requested an account of all transactions made on behalf of the Association and of the financial condition of the Association, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

9.7 Joint Signatures. Unless the Board authorizes otherwise, any check or other negotiable instrument issued by the Association shall require the signatures of any of the following officers: the president, the chief financial officer, or the secretary, provided that under all circumstances the withdrawal of any money from the Association reserve account shall require the signatures of at least two people, who shall either be members of the Board, or one member of the Board and one officer who is not a member of the Board. For all purposes herein, "reserve accounts" shall mean money that the Association's Board has identified from its annual budget for use to defray the future repair of, replacement of, or additions to those major components that the Association is obliged to maintain.

9.8 Compensation. Officers shall not receive any compensation for any service rendered to the Association as an officer, provided that any officer may be reimbursed for actual out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred in the performance of his or her duties for which the officer received written approval by the Board.

#### ARTICLE 10 - Indemnification and Insurance

10.1 Indemnification. The Association shall indemnify any present or former director, officer, or employee, or other agent of the Association to the fullest extent authorized under Corporations Code section 7237 or any successor statute, and may advance to any such person funds to pay expenses that may be incurred in defending any action or proceeding on receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of

such person to repay such amount unless it is ultimately determined that such person was entitled to indemnification hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no modification or elimination of this provision shall be retroactive except to the extent the modification provides greater indemnification protection, and no modification or elimination shall be operative against any director, officers, employee or other agent serving in such capacity at the time the modification or elimination becomes effective until that person has received written notice of the modification or elimination except to the extent the modification provides greater protection.

10.2 Insurance. The Association shall have the power to purchase or maintain insurance on behalf of its agents, against any liability asserted against or incurred by any agent in such capacity arising out of the agent's status as such, whether or not the Association would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under Section 10.1 of these Bylaws.

#### ARTICLE 11 - Amendments

11.1 Amending the Bylaws. If a two-class voting system is in effect, these Bylaws may be amended by a vote or written consent of a majority of the voting power of the Members of each class. If a one-class voting system is in effect, these Bylaws may be amended by the vote or written consent of a majority of the voting power of the Members and a majority of the voting power of the Members of the Association other than Declarant

11.2 Amending the Articles. If the two-class voting system is in effect, the Articles may be amended by a vote or written consent of a majority of the Board and a majority of the voting power of the Members of each class. If a one-class voting system is in effect, the Articles may be amended by a majority vote of the Board, a majority of the voting power of all the Members, and a majority of voting power other than Declarant

11.3 Amendment Restrictions. Notwithstanding the amendment requirements contained in Sections 11.1 and 11.2 of these Bylaws, the percentage of the voting power of the Association, or of Members other than the Declarant necessary to amend a specific clause or provision in these Bylaws or the Articles, shall not be less than the prescribed percentage of affirmative votes required for action to be taken under the clause or provision.

#### ARTICLE 12 - General Provisions

12.1 Conflict with Declaration. If any of these Bylaws conflict with any provisions of the Declaration, the Declaration shall control to the extent of any such conflict.

12.2 Fiscal Year. Unless the Board determines otherwise, the fiscal year of the Association shall be a calendar year.

12.3 Records. The Association shall maintain the following records: (i) adequate and correct books and records of account;

(ii) written minutes of the proceedings of its Members, Board and committees of the Board,  
and

(iii) a record of its Members giving their names, mailing addresses, and telephone numbers. The Association shall keep at its principal office the original or a copy of the Declaration, the Articles, and these Bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the Members at all reasonable times during office hours.

12.4 Inspection Rights. Any Member or any Member's duly-appointed representative shall have access to the Association membership register (including names, addresses and voting rights), books of account; and minutes from any meeting of the Members, the Board and any committee of the Board in order to inspect or copy such records for any purposes reasonably related to his or her interest as a Member. Access shall be at any reasonable time at the office of the Association or at such other place within the Development as the Board prescribes. The Board shall establish Rules regarding the Notice the Member must give to the custodian of the records to obtain access, the hours and days of the week when the records may be inspected and copied, and the charges imposed by the Association for copying records requested by the Member. Any Member, at any reasonable time, may inspect, copy or make extracts of any books, records and documents of the Association and inspect the physical properties owned or controlled by the Association.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Association may provide an alternative method to the foregoing inspection rights pursuant to Corporations Code section 8330(c), and the Association retains the rights described in Corporations Code sections 8331 and 8332.



CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I certify that:

I am the duly-elected and acting Secretary of Hamilton Field of Marin Association, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation; and the above Bylaws consisting of 14 pages are the Bylaws of this Corporation as adopted by the incorporator on \_\_\_\_\_, 1998. They have not been amended or modified since that date.

This certificate is executed on \_\_\_\_\_, 1998, at \_\_\_\_\_,  
California.

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_, Secretary